ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 14, 2007
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair

Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Donny O son

Senator Gary W/ ken

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Johnny Ellis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 73
"An Act anmending the functions and powers of the Al aska
Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education; and relating to the
repaynent provisions for nedical education and postsecondary
degree program participants.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to consider
W TNESS REGQ STER

Di ane Barrans, Executive Director

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Educati on

P. 0. Box 110505

Juneau, AK 99811- 0505

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Avai l abl e for questions on SB 73

Rod Betit, President

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association ( ASHNHA)
426 Main Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 73

SENATE SED COW TTEE -1- February 14, 2007



Lauri e Hernon, Regional Director

Government Affairs

Al aska Comm ssi on on Postsecondary Education (ACPE)
3300 Providence Drive

Suite 02 - B Tower

Anchor age, AK 99515

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 73

Rol and Gower, President

Al aska State Medical Association
4107 Laurel Street

Anchor age, AK 99508

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 73

Al i ce Sanuel son, representing herself
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 73

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Special Committee on
Education neeting to order at 8:01:14 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, WIken, dson, Davis, and Chair
St evens.

SB 73- WMM _MEDI CAL SCHOCL

CHAI R STEVENS announced SB 73 to be up for consideration.
8:01:39 AM

SENATOR ELLIS, sponsor of SB 73, explained that it relates to
the expansion of the Wom ng, Wshington, Al aska, Montana, and
| daho partnership with the University of Wshington (UW Schoo
of Medicine (WMM). The bill will increase the WAMM enrol | nent
threshold from 10 to 20 people.

8:04:13 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS asked for the difference between the WM and
W CH acronyns.

SENATOR ELLIS explained that the Western Interstate Conpact for
H gher Education (WCHI') is a collaboration of western states on
hi gher education, which sponsors various undergraduate prograns
including the Wstern Undergraduate Exchange (WJE). Al aska

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 2- February 14, 2007



participates in these prograns because it is a young state
wi t hout the resources for its own graduate school s.

8:05:16 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the WMM program expansi on woul d al |l ow
students to spend three of their four years of medical school in
Al aska.

SENATOR ELLIS replied that students spend the first year at the
University of Alaska Anchorage (UAA) and then spend the
remai ning three at the UW

8: 06: 37 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked how WMM woul d i ncrease residency placenent
in Al aska.

SENATOR ELLIS said that residency placenent was not included in
the legislation, but that it was a recomendation of a task
force assenbled to address the issue. Returning nedical school
graduates to Al aska have no residency programto enroll in, and
thus nust conplete their residencies in other states or enter
nore lucrative professions than famly practice to repay their
debt. Conpleting residency in another state nmeans that students
are less likely to return to Alaska. SB 73 does not address the
issue of increasing residency availability, but it is an
i nportant issue.

8:09: 35 AM

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director of the Al aska Comr ssion on
Post secondary Education (ACPE), explained that the WMM program
has been in place for over 30 years in Al aska, and that clinical
care units in Alaska allow for students to return to Al aska
after their second year of school, at the UW

CHAI R STEVENS asked about the success of the program

M5. BARRANS said that the return rate of Alaska residents in the
WMM program to Alaska is nearly 70 percent, and around 85
percent for all WMM participants who attend school in Al aska.
Doctors tend to remain where they establish a practice.

8:11: 52 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 3- February 14, 2007



CHAI R STEVENS asked about the state of the ACPE student | oan
program

M5. BARRANS replied that the program currently offers around $70
mllion in loans through federal and state education |oans. The
interest rates are anong the best in the country.

CHAI R STEVENS asked if the extension of the WMM program was a
cause of fiscal concern for the ACPE.

M5. BARRANS replied that the ACPE acts as a fiscal agent for the
WMM program and considers the WAMM students to be taking out
| oans from the conmm ssion. Previously WMM students had no
contractual obligation to return to Al aska when they finished

their studies, and this spring will be the first wave of
students who wll be nonetarily encouraged to return to the
state.

8:14: 03 AM

CHAI R STEVENS remarked that there are |ess expensive options to
attract doctors to Alaska, and asked WM. Barrans for her
opi ni on.

8:14: 49 AM

M5. BARRANS said that there is currently no fiscal incentive
program for non-Al askan residents. The WCH program is |oan-
only and includes no repaynent or forgiveness features.

CHAIR STEVENS referenced a chart that showed that students
generally take seven years to becone practicing physicians at a
cost of $250,000. The WMM program is beneficial but it’'s
inportant to realize that other options exist.

8:17: 00 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked if WCH only applied to select prograns of
st udy.

M5. BARARNS replied that WCH de-funded their |aw study support
in 1987. WCH wused to apply to two groups of students, those
who had limted access to certain fields of study and needed
W CHI support, and those whose adm ssion to a program could be
aided by WCH but where it wasn't necessary. In the late 1990s
student | oan corporation receipts began to be used to fund W CHI
| oans, which nmust be fully recovered with interest.

SENATE SED COW TTEE -4- February 14, 2007



SENATOR OLSON asked about the average nedi cal school debt.

M5. BARRANS replied that nedical students can borrow up to
$60, 000 through the supplenental education [oan program They
al so often take out federal |oans, which have no cap. Typically
the total amount is between $80,000 and $100, 000.

SENATOR OLSON asked how many WAM students participate in the
ACPE | oan program

M5. BARRANS replied that the nunber is close to 90 percent, and
general ly students do not default on their | oans.

8:20:45 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked about the nunber of students who take out
| oans and do not finish nedical school.

M5. BARRANS replied that there have not been any w thdrawals for
acadenm c reasons, but that very occasionally a nedical reason is
cause for w thdrawal from VW\AM .

8:22:22 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for a |oan repaynent figure for a student
who woul d not return to Al aska after graduation

M5. BARRANS said that according to SB 73 such students would owe
half the anmpbunt the state paid for their schooling for years two
t hrough four, which would be around $76, 000.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked for Ms. Barrans’ opinion on the return of
the state’ s investnent.

M5. BARRANS said that many factors nust be considered, including
the student’s job <choices after graduation. |If the debt
obligation is so onerous that a student can not contenplate any
ot her post-graduate possibility, it mght act as a dis-incentive
to the program Currently the student is responsible for the
tuition differential between Al aska and Washi ngt on.

8:25:17 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how nuch noney a non-returning student
woul d owe by present standards.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 5- February 14, 2007



MS. BARRANS said that the anpbunt woul d be $150, 000.

CHAIR STEVENS asked for the difference between the current
repaynent rule and the change that SB 73 proposes.

M5. BARRANS replied that the significant change is that SB 73
woul d postpone interest accrual wuntil after the conpletion of
resi dency or other service obligations.

8:28:21 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if SB 73 would change the program to a
m ni mum or maxi mum of 20 students.

M5. BARRANS replied that the bill would allow for a class of 20
beginning in 2007. In 2006 there were over 70 applicants, 40 of
whi ch were seriously considered.

8:28:42 AM

SENATOR WLKEN said that SB 73 may not give a greater incentive
to return to Alaska because it would allow for l|ess interest
accrual and thus | ess necessity of |oan forgiveness.

CHAI R STEVENS asked how ot her states conpete to attract doctors.
M5. BARRANS replied that all but the WAMM states have their own
medi cal schools, and students can attend themwith no obligation
to remain. A lack of viable nedical study options in Al aska
means a student may choose to get residency in another state.
8:32: 34 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if there is any mlitary incentive or
connection with the WAMM program

MS. BARRANS said she did not know.
8:34: 01 AM

SENATOR W LKEN asked if there is a WMM provision for graduates
who enter the mlitary.

M5. BARRANS said that there are general mlitary defernents of
paynments and interest, including an interest accrual cap.

8:35: 39 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 6- February 14, 2007



SENATOR WLKEN related a personal story regarding nedica
school

8:37:26 AM

CHAI R STEVENS rel ated a personal story regarding nedi cal school
and asked if there are other prograns that pay students’
tuition.

M5. BARRANS said that enployers are increasingly providing |oan
repayment prograns.

SENATOR W LKEN said that Indian Health Services forgives $20, 000
in debt yearly for a medical student.

8:39:47 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked why the state cannot provide nore
forgi veness prograns.

M5. BARRANS replied that it’s a matter of available noney. An
exanpl e of such an alternative programis the Teacher Education
Loan program which has a return rate of around 25 percent.

8:42:12 AM

CHAIR STEVENS remarked that 50 percent of Al askans who enter
WMM practice in the state, and the rate of WCH return is 18
percent .

SENATOR W LKEN asked what the amount of the ACPE | oan budget is.

M5. BARRANS replied that the 2007 bonds total around $75
mllion.

8:42: 58 AM

RCD BETIT, President of the Alaska State Hospital and Nursing
Hone  Association (ASHNHA), said that the bill is his
association's top priority for addressing the gap between
physician supply and demand in Al aska. The state needs a net
gain of 59 physicians per year, up from the current nunber of
38. The $250,000 spent for a WMM student is for the full
medi cal school education; $60,000 represents the cost of closing
the funding gap in the famly practice program The actual cost
for a residency position per year is $100,000. If SB 73 is

SENATE SED COW TTEE -7- February 14, 2007



passed early enough in the current |legislative session, the
additional 10 students could be allowed into WAMM in 2007

8:46: 57 AM

CHAI R STEVENS said that he would |ike to see increased retention
of physicians addressed in particul ar.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if M. Betit wants the bill to be passed
by m d- Mar ch.

MR BETIT replied that the UW is currently reviewing WWAWM
applications and if the bill passes by March, the UW will be
able to select another 10 students.

8:48:32 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked what incentives are put forth by individua
hospitals to attract staff.

MR. BETIT replied that hospitals help set up practices, provide
good sal aries, and spend a | ot of nobney on recruitnent.

8:50:41 AM

LAURIE HERMON, Regional Director of Government Affairs for
Provi dence Health System said that the return on the WWAWM
investnment is phenonenal; nearly 80 percent of the Al aska
residents in the programreturn to the state to practice, which
is a better rate of return than states with their own nedical
schools. The physician shortage in Alaska is a multi-faceted
problem and is being addressed wth increased residency
posi tions. Physician rotation would help the problem by exposing
nore people to the possibility of living in Al aska.

8:55:21 AM

CHAIR STEVENS asked if the WMM program is the nobst cost-
ef fective way of enticing physicians to Al aska.

M5. HERMON said that the increase of the programis an inportant
first step in the process, but other goals should not be set
asi de.

8:56: 32 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 8- February 14, 2007



DR. ROLAND GOWER, President of the Alaska State Medica
Association, said that SB 73 is a tinely bill, because Al aska
has an aging general and nedical population; the average
physician age in Alaska is 52. There are many |ocal youth who
wish to beconme physicians but are unable to enter the W\WAM
program He related a personal story about the WMM program

He asked the commttee to consider a reasonable payback
provision, and said that conpetition for doctors throughout the
country is fierce. Alaska has a good climte for practicing
medi ci ne, and nore effort should be spent on recruitnent.

9:04:18 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked why nore enphasis is not being placed on
resi dency needs.

DR. GOWNER said that residency prograns do need nore funding, and
that in-state training prograns are limted. Sone areas may not
even have enough patients for training.

SENATOR OLSON asked how long Alaska could expect to not have
HMOs in the state.

DR. GONER replied that HMOs are not an issue in Al aska because
of the isolation and small popul ation.

CHAI R STEVENS said that Al aska needs ten percent nore physicians

than the rest of the nation because of the rural aspect, and
asked if tel enedicine could be beneficial.

9:07: 53 AM

DR. GOVER said that Alaska is on the cutting edge of nedical
t echnol ogy, but better telecomunications and nore manpower are
needed.

9:09: 34 AM

ALI CE SAMJELSON, representing herself, related a personal story
regarding the difficulties inherent in applying to nedical

school s and the WAMM program

9:11:11 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 9- February 14, 2007



CHAI R STEVENS said that he intended to hold SB 73 in committee,
and asked Ms. Barrans to look into the Health Resources and
Services Adm nistration | oan program

SENATOR WLKEN said that he had an anendnent he wants the
commttee to consider in the next neeting regarding physician
| oan forgiveness.

CHAI R STEVENS thanked the testifiers for their participation
and, seeing no further business, adjourned the conmttee neeting
at 9:13:18 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -10- February 14, 2007



